
AUDIT COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Venue: Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven 

Date: Thursday, 12th September, 2019
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby            Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 8 August 2019 1 - 4

4. Brexit Preparation 5 - 8

5. Role of the Audit Committee 9 - 16

6. Forward Plan 17 - 18

7. Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Audit Committee will be held on Thursday 7 
November 2019 at 2:00pm in The Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, 
Catherine Street, Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ.

Membership: Mr Michael Bonner (Chair), Jackie Bowman, Sean Cullen, Allan Forster, 
Joan Hully (Deputy Chair), Charles Maudling, Ged McGrath and Russell Studholme.

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 8 AUGUST 2019

Present: Mr Michael Bonner, in the Chair; Councillors Jackie Bowman, Sean Cullen, Joan Hully 
and Russell Studholme.

Officers: Steven Brown (Director of Financial Resources), Sarah Pemberton (Director of 
Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)), Gillian Butterworth 
(Performance and Risk Management Officer) and Clive Willoughby (Democratic Services 
Officer).

Also Present: Mr Jamie Wright (Grant Thornton LLP)

AU 19/1 Appointment of Deputy Chair. 

It was proposed by Councillor Jackie Bowman duly seconded and 

RESOLVED – That Councillor Joan Hully be appointed Deputy Chair of the Audit Committee for 
the Municipal Year 2019/2020.

AU 19/2 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence received from Councillors Allan Forster and Ged McGrath.

AU 19/3 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

Councillor Joan Hully declared a Personal interest in any item relating to benefits due to being 
in receipt of a benefit.

AU 19/4 Minutes of the meeting held on 10 April 2019 

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 April 2019 be signed by the Chair as a 
correct record.

AU 19/5 Risk Monitoring Report for Quarter 1 of 2019/20 

The Performance and Risk Management Officer introduced the Quarterly Risk Monitoring 
Report for Quarter one of 2019-20 to committee.

For the benefit of the new members of the Audit Committee, it was explained that the 
Council was required to have in place an effective arrangement for the management of risk.
Together with the Performance Management Framework this was used to identify, manage 
and monitor all risks that may have an impact on the Council.
The Strategic and Operational Risks were reviewed by the Corporate Leadership Team on a 
monthly basis and the Risk Register shared with Audit Committee.

Committee were then guided through the quarter one Strategic Risk Register.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Key Performance Indicators were explained and the Director of Financial Resources provided 
a verbal update on the current PFI position.

RESOLVED:- that the Quarterly Risk Monitoring Report for Quarter one of 2019-20 be noted.

AU 19/6 Audit Recommendations Implementation Report for Quarter 1 of 2019/20 

Consideration was given to the progress of the implementation of Audit recommendations for 
Quarter One of 2019/20.

The Performance and Risk Management Officer highlighted that at the end of Quarter One, 
there were a total of 29 audit recommendations outstanding, with a target date for 
completion up to 30 June 2019. Of these 7 were Priority 1 and 22 were Priority 2. 

During the discussion that followed, a suggestion was made that the old outstanding audit 
recommendations be looked at and the possibility of closing them off if they were no longer 
relevant be considered at the next meeting. 

RESOLVED – That 
a) the report and progress being made in implementing overdue recommendations be 

noted; 
b) the Director of Financial Resources and Director of Corporate Services and Commercial 

Strategy look at the possibility of closing them off old outstanding audit 
recommendations if they were no longer relevant and make recommendations for 
consideration at the next meeting.

AU 19/7 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19 

Committee considered the Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19.

This included a summary of all internal audits undertaken in Period 4 (2018/19) to Period 1 
(2019/20).

During the consideration of this Item, Members also considered the Internal Audit 
Performance Measures Q4 of 2018/19 and the Internal Audit Work Plan 2018/19 which were 
Items 8 and 9 on the agenda.

Members were assured that the Internal Audit team was adequately resourced and were 
satisfied with the progress being made.

RESOLVED:- that the Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19 be noted.

AU 19/8 2019 Audit Monitoring Report 

Committee considered the 2019 Audit Monitoring Report.

Each audit finding and recommendation was scrutinised and the comments made discussed.

(Note: Councillor Sean Cullen left the meeting during the discussion of this item at 3:15pm)

Page 2



Members were encouraged at the thoroughness of the audit reports.

A suggestion was put forward that only ‘High’ priority items be put to the Audit Committee in 
future with a summary report of the others.  

RESOLVED:- that 
a) the 2019 Audit Monitoring Report be noted, and
b) only ‘High’ priority items be put to the Audit Committee in future with a summary 

report of the others.

AU 19/9 Internal Audit Performance Measures Q4 of 2018/19 

The Internal Audit Performance Measures Q4 of 2018/19 were considered with Agenda item 
6 (Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19).

RESOLVED:- that the Internal Audit Performance Measures Q4 of 2018/19 be noted.

AU 19/10 Internal Audit Work Plan 2018/19 

The Internal Audit Work Plan 2018/19 was considered with Agenda item 6 (Internal Audit 
Annual Report 2018/19).

RESOLVED:- that the Internal Audit Work Plan 2018/19 be noted.

AU 19/11 Internal Audit Performance Measures Q1 of 2019/20 

The Director of Financial Resources introduced the Internal Audit Performance Measures Q1 
of 2019/20 report to the Committee for consideration.

Members were satisfied that everything looked to be on track.

With regard to the ‘Post audit customer satisfaction survey feedback’, it was suggested that 
this survey was meaningless and whether this should be considered in future.  

RESOLVED:- that the Internal Audit Performance Measures Q1 of 2019/20 be noted.

AU 19/12 Internal Audit Work Plan 2019/20 

Committee considered the Internal Work Plan 2019/20 and were advised that it was on 
programme.  

RESOLVED:- that the Internal Work Plan 2019/20 be noted.

AU 19/13 2018/19 Statement of Accounts Update 

The Director of Financial Resources provided an update on the 2018/19 Statement of 
Accounts and an overview of the position regarding the 2017/18 accounts.

Mr Jamie Wright (Grant Thornton) also provided further details from the external auditor’s 
perspective.

Page 3



An offer was also made by Mr Wright to provide training to the Committee.

RESOLVED:- that the progress with the publication of the unaudited 2018/19 Statement of 
Accounts be noted.

AU 19/14 Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of Audit Committee will be held on Thursday 12 August 2019 at 2:00pm in 
the Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Whitehaven. CA20 1NX.

The Meeting closed at 3.55 pm 

Chair

Page 4



Audit 120919

BREXIT PREPARATION 

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Mayor Mike Starkie
LEAD OFFICER: Julie Betteridge, Director of Growth and Inclusive 

Communities
REPORT AUTHOR Peta Leigh, Policy Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE?

To update the Committee on the Council’s preparations for Brexit.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The UK may be leaving the European Union on 31st October and, to date, 
the government has not reached agreement on a deal.   In order to prepare 
for the exit from the EU, Copeland Borough Council has formed a Brexit 
Preparation working group which is monitoring the position regarding the 
implications for Copeland and our links to Cumbria as a whole.  
Julie Betteridge, Director of Growth and Inclusive Communities, has been 
designated as Brexit Lead Officer, supported by Andrew Clarke, Principal 
Communications and Engagement Officer, and Peta Leigh, Policy officer.  

2.             UPDATE

2.1        The Local Authority Information Network, a network of 9 local 
authority chief executives from across England, has been established to share 
information on preparations and keep councils informed on national policy 
that could have implications for local services, businesses and residents.  
Copeland Borough Council belongs to the North West Region led by Liverpool 
City Council.  

2.2        Regular updates are received from The Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), the Local Government 
Association (LGA), Local Government Information Unit (LGiU), Rural Services 
Network (RSN) and other organisations.  This information is collated and 
circulated by the Policy Officer to the Brexit Preparation Group and to other 
officers and elected members via the monthly policy and briefings updates.  

2.3       Through contact with colleagues in Cumbria County Council and the other 
             district councils in the county, Cumbria Local Enterprise Council, Chambers of 
            Commerce, BEC cluster group, Sellafield Ltd, Local Resilience Forum 
            and other organisations and businesses, Copeland Borough Council 
           officers and elected members are kept informed of the potential issues 
           and impact of Brexit in this area.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2.4        We have considered local issues and in early 2019 this was focused on our 
Social Inclusion policy and the possible impact on those in poverty and 
specifically those experiencing food poverty from what was known about 
Brexit at this point.  Analysis from national research bodies including the 
Joseph Rowntree Foundation assisted our understanding and how we might 
work with partners to help our more vulnerable residents and communities.  
CLT are keeping a watching brief on food Brexit implications particularly 
relating to no-deal Brexit.

2.5 As highlighted we have an internal officer group to understand our position.   
This is supported by regular operational monitoring by managers, policy and
legal monitoring and overview by officers.  This group liaises closely with CLT 
and the Council’s Leadership and Management Group.  In the last quarter we 
have re-assessed operational issues in light of Brexit updates to identify 
operational risks.  We have identified three major internal concerns.  One 
remains the food Brexit issues for our vulnerable residents, another is 
supplies to the Council for operational delivery which are being managed 
currently and the final is relating to some key contracts.  
All of these are being actively managed.  For example, we have been given 
reassurances that the majority of (fleet) parts suppliers have increased their 
stock levels by 15% to reduce the risk of non-availability and we have fuel 
supplies for a minimum of 6 weeks and are actively managing our stock 
control. 
We are regularly reviewing the potential impacts of Brexit on service delivery 
and if circumstances require we will activate business continuity plans to 
maintain critical service delivery.

2.6 Strategic economic risks in Copeland are being regularly monitored and the 
analysis updated by the Cumbrian Local Enterprise Partnership and individual 
businesses and sectors.  

2.7 We are aware that the Government will be commencing a major public 
information campaign on Brexit in the near future.  To this end, MHCLG will 
be issuing regular, focussed and streamlined briefings to local authorities for 
dissemination.  MHCLG have stated an expectation that Councils will escalate 
any local issues through their Local Resilience Forum.  This operates at a 
Cumbria level with Copeland Council representation.  There is a 
comprehensive Q&A on Brexit on Gov.UK.

3. CONCLUSION

3.1  A major concern for Copeland Borough Council at present is the 
vulnerability of some of our residents who will be most affected by food 
Brexit potentially impacting food banks and resulting in rises in the price of 
food and other essentials.

Page 6



3.2 The uncertainty of what effect a ‘no-deal’ exit will have means that a pro-
active stance in preparation is made difficult. 

3.3 Our assessment is that there is not a strategic risk to the Council at present 
and operational risks are known and being managed but the position is 
being closely monitored in case it may become one and need to be 
escalated to our strategic risk register.

3.4 We continue to liaise closely within Cumbria County Council particularly in 
relation to the Government Brexit preparations around communications to 
residents.

  
4. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

4.1 Legal comment: No legal issues arise from the report itself. Any legal issues 
arising from the consequences of Brexit will be dealt with if and when they 
arise. A raft of legislative amendments have been made by Parliament to 
change existing legislation to remove/change references to the EU across a 
range of functions. All that legislation is conditional on an actual exit from 
the EU and, insofar as it affects the Council, will be dealt on exit day.

4.2 Equalities comment:   We have not received any equalities impact nationally 
but have under our social inclusion policy work undertaken an assessment 
about local impact within our communities.  Further work will be needed 
once more clarity is provided to understand if there is specific work for 
Copeland to do under our Equalities Scheme.

Appendices:         

List of Background Documents: 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee 120919

Role of the Audit Committee

PORTFOLIO HOLDER
LEAD OFFICER:

Mike Starkie
Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS?
An effective Audit Committee ultimately provides an independent high-level resource to 
support good governance and strong public financial management at the Council.

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE?
This report sets out the role of the Audit Committee; how it provides independent 
assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control 
environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and governance processes. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Audit Committee is recommended 
1) Note the report and CIPFA Audit Committee guidance set out in Appendix A; 
2) Note the evaluation of Audit Committee Effectiveness set out in Appendix B; and
3) Agree the draft Terms of Reference set out in Appendix C.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with 
governance independent assurance on the adequacy of:

 the risk management framework;

 the internal control environment; and 

 the integrity of the financial reporting and annual governance processes. 

1.2. Audit committees in local authorities are necessary to satisfy the wider 
requirements for sound financial management and internal control that are set 
out in legislation:

 the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 state that a local 
authority is responsible “for a sound system of internal control….”; and

 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority 
to “make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs”. 

 to oversee internal audit as per the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



(PSIAS) and the supporting Local Government Application Note for the 
United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (LGAN).

1.3. The chief financial officer (CFO) also has overarching responsibility for 
discharging the requirement for sound financial management. To be truly 
effective the audit committee needs to provide support and challenge. 

1.4. Appendix A provides guidance from CIPFA for the Committee members, it covers 
the purpose and core functions of an Audit Committee. It sets out areas where 
the audit committee can add value. 

1.5. To allow committee members to see how they will discharge their 
responsibilities and add value, Appendix B provides an evaluation of audit 
committee effectiveness. It shows the areas where the audit committee can add 
value, as outlined in the CIPFA guidance document, and the information that will 
be provided to the Audit Committee during the year by officers. 

1.6. Finally the draft Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee are set out in the 
Appendix C, this will form part of the updated constitution to be agreed by 
Council later this year. The draft terms of reference includes the relevant 
elements of the previous Audit and Governance Committee.  

2. CONCLUSIONS

2.1. This paper seeks to put in place the steps to ensure that the Council has an 
independent high-level resource to support good governance and strong public 
financial management at the Council.

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

3.1. Legal comments are: There are no legal issues arising from this report.

3.2. The Monitoring Officer’s comments are:  Clear guidance and robust governance 
are essential elements for an effective Audit Committee.  Terms of reference 
updates due to changes in Committee structure agreed by Full Council in May 
2019.

3.3. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report

3.4. EIA Comments

3.5. Policy Framework

3.6. Other consultee comments, if any:

Page 10



4. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

4.1. As set out in the report.

5. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE THE RISKS 
GOING TO BE  MANAGED?

5.1. Regular reports to the Audit Committee. 

Appendix A: CIPFA Audit Committee guidance (To be circulated at the meeting)
Appendix B: Audit Committee Effectiveness
Appendix C: Draft Terms of Reference

Page 11



Appendix B: Audit Committee Effectiveness 

Areas where the audit committee can add 
value by supporting improvement

Information to be provided to the Audit 
Committee during the year

Promoting the principles of good 
governance and their application to 
decision making

o Approve the Local Code of 
Governance

o Approve the Audit & Governance 
Statement

o Undertake a self-assessment of 
governance arrangements

o Supporting reviews/audits of 
governance arrangements 

Contributing to the development of an 
effective control environment

o Progress with implementing audit 
recommendations

o External audit reports
o Approve an annual internal audit 

plan
o Receive periodic internal audit 

progress reports 
o Receive the Annual Internal Audit 

report
Supporting the establishment of 
arrangements for the governance of risk 
and for effective arrangements to manage 
risks

o Receive periodic risk monitoring 
reports

Advising on the adequacy of the assurance 
framework and considering whether 
assurance is deployed efficiently and 
effectively

o Approve the Audit & Governance 
Statement

o Receive periodic reports from 
assurance providers; internal audit, 
external audit, risk management

Supporting the quality of the internal audit 
activity, particularly by underpinning its 
organisational independence

o Approve the Audit Charter
o Receive periodic internal audit 

progress reports 
o Receive the Annual Internal Audit 

report
Aiding the achievement of the authority’s 
goals and objectives through helping to 
ensure appropriate governance, risk, 
control and assurance arrangements

o Approve the Audit & Governance 
Statement

o Receive periodic risk monitoring 
reports

Page 12



Supporting the development of robust 
arrangements for ensuring value for 
money

o Receive the annual report by the 
External Audit covering the value for 
money arrangements

o Approve the Audit & Governance 
Statement

Helping the authority to implement the 
values of good governance, including 
effective arrangements for countering 
fraud and corruption risks

o Approve the Fraud Prevention & Anti 
Corruption Strategy

o Approve the Anti money Laundering 
policy

Promoting effective public reporting to the 
authority’s stakeholders and local 
community and measures to improve 
transparency and accountability

o Approve on behalf of the Council, the 
Annual Statement of Accounts, the 
Annual Governance Statement

Page 13



Appendix C: Draft Terms of Reference

Name of Committee Audit Committee

Number of Members 7  Politically Balanced
plus Independent Chair

Quorum 3

Frequency of Meetings Approx every two months

Lead Officer Director of Financial Resources / Monitoring 
Officer

Terms of Reference
1. To monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the Internal Audit service and internal 

control environment and to:

(i) approve a presented annual internal audit plan
(ii) monitor progress against the plan through the receipt of periodic update 

reports and an annual Internal Audit report and assess whether adequate 
skills and resources are available to provide an effective audit function;

(iii) receive and consider major Internal Audit findings and recommendations;
(iv) monitor the response to major findings and the implementation of key 

recommendations.

2. To monitor the adequacy of the Council’s risk management, corporate governance 
and anti-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements.

3. To approve on behalf of the Council, the Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement.

4. To monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the External Audit service and respond 
to its findings and to

(i) discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit of the 
Council services and functions, and consider the external audit fee and 
terms of engagement;

(ii) receive and consider external audit reports and Management Letters and 
advise the Council as appropriate

Page 14



(iii) contribute to and monitor the Council’s response to the external auditor’s 
findings and the implementation of external audit recommendations

5. To monitor the effectiveness of working relationships between internal and external 
audit functions.

6. To refer to the appropriate overview and scrutiny committee any issues relating to 
the development or review of Council policy or the scrutiny of particular Executive or 
regulatory decisions.

7. To receive regular reports about the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
counter fraud and corruption arrangements.

8. To undertake an Audit Committee self-assessment exercise, on a yearly basis, to 
ensure that its own effectiveness is regularly reviewed.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee 120919

Audit Committee Forward Plan

Date Papers
12 Sep 2019 o Role of Audit Committee (DoR)

o Guide to Local Authority Accounts (DoR)
o Forward Plan (DoR)

7 Nov 2019 o Half yearly Risk Report (GB)
o Half yearly Internal Audit Report (DoR)
o 2017/18 Financial Statements (DoR)
o 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement (DoR)
o 2017/18 External Audit Findings Report (GT)
o Forward Plan (DoR)

Feb 2019 (Date TBC) o Internal Audit Charter & Plan (DoR)
o Effectiveness of Audit Committee Self-Assessment (DoR)
o 2018/19 Financial Statements  (DoR)
o 2018/19 Annual Governance Statement (DoCS&CS)
o 2018/19 External Audit Findings Report (GT)
o 2017/18 External Audit Annual Audit Letter (GT)
o Forward Plan (DoR)

May 2019 (Date TBC) o Year End Risk Report (GB)
o Year End Internal Audit Report (DoR)
o 2018/19 External Audit Annual Audit Letter (GT)
o Forward Plan (DoR)

Jul 2019 (Date TBC) o 2019/20 Financial Statements (DoR)
o 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement (DoCS&CS)
o 2019/20 External Audit Findings Report (GT)
o Forward Plan (DoR)

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 8 August 2019
	4 Brexit Preparation
	5 Role of the Audit Committee
	6 Forward Plan

